
.UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. 
16 U.S.C. § 3372(a)(l) 
16 U.S.C. § 3373(d)(l), (2) 
16 u.s.c. § 3374 
18 u.s.c. § 371 
18 u.s.c. § 545 
18 u.s.c. §2 
18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(2)(B) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. 

OMALISS KEO, 

MASPHAL KRY, 

JAMES LAU, 

DICKSON LAU, 

SUNNY CHAN, 

RAPHAEL CHEUNG MAN, 

SARAH YEUNG, and 

HING IP CHUNG, 

Defendants. / 

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 

. The Grand Jury charges that: 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

At all times material to this Indictment� 

1. The Lacey Act made it unlawful-for any person to import, export, transport, _sell,

receive, acquire, or purchase any fish or wildlife or plant taken, possessed, transported, or sold in 

violation of any law, treaty, or regulation of the United States. 16-U.S.C. § 3372(a)(l). 

2. The Lacey Act, 16 U.S.C. §§ 3372(d)(l) and (2), also made it unlawful for any

person to make or submit any false record, account, or label for, or any false identification of, any 
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wi. ldlife which has been, or is intended t.o be - (1) imported, exported, fransported, sold, purchased,

or received from any foreign cotmtry; or'(2) transpol-ted in tnterstate or foreign commerce.

The Lacey Act defnes çûwildlife'' as GGany wild nnimal, whether alive or dead,

inbluding without limit>tions any wild mnmmal, bird, reptile, amphibian, fish, mollusk, cnzstacean,

''arthtoppd, coelenterate, or other invertebrate, whether or not bred, hatched, or born in captivity,

and includes any part, product, egg, or offspring thereof.'' 16 U.S.C. j 3371(a).

In order to protect certain species against over-exploitation, the United States

became a signatoiy to an international treaty known aà the Convention on International Trade in

. Endangered Species cif Wild Fatma and Flora (hereinafter 6:CITES''). Depending on thç required

level of protection needed by 'a species, CITES uses a system of Appendixes to classify protçcted

' 

wildlife and plants. Appendix I of CITE.S includes species whjch are threasened with exrtinction
' and for which trade must be subject to particulady stfict regulation and for whici no trade is

allowed for commercial purposes. CITES, Art. 11 at ! 1. Appendix 11 of CITES includes wildlife

qpecies which although not necessarily threatened with extinction now, may become so unless

trade in specimens of such species is strittly regulated. C ITES, Art. 11 at ! 2.

The United States and the Kingdom of Cambodia, along with over 180 other

' 

CITES aild àound to abide'by its provisions and restrktions. Parties tocotmtries, wele parties to ,

the Convention regùlate 'trade in specimens of various speciqs and their pads, products, and

derivatives through à, system of permits (CICITES Permifl. Such docllments enable the

Convention parties tp monitor the effects of the volllme and type of trade to enstlre trade is legal

and not detrim ental to the survival of the species included in the various Appendixes.

The United.states Fish apd Wildlife Sbrvice CTW S''), Department of the Ipterior,
' 

is designated by Congress pllrsuant to the Endangered Species Act (ESA), Title 16, United States
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. 
'

Code, Section 1537(â), as the CITES enforc' emçnt authority wijhin the Unijed. Statqs. The
. . )t . .

D epart. mrnt,of the Ipterior publishkj regulatiöns to implèment CITES in 50 C.F.R. PM  23. A list
. ' /

of a11 speciej pritected by CITES and the E$A implepeptation program is laintained ptlrsuant to
. 

' .. .

the Ctmventionwby the' CITES Secretariat. 50 C.F.R. jj 2. 3.7 and 23.9.

's 7; The prpvisions of CITES are implemçntçd through the ESA, whjch jtates in. ' ' . .. ' ' xu... ' .
. . . ''

relevant pat't,.'tlt is t1111:.w511 for any pe'rson . . . to engage i,n any trade in any s'pecimens rof wildlifej

contrary to t. he provisiohs of k.. (CITESq or.to possess any.spedimens (of wildli ej 'traded contrary
, . . . .1 . .'

. . 

. ,, :q ,, yj tjwyz tjay.jagy uuoxport.4', clrj'y;s Xrt I.atto the proyijlons' Of .... (CITES): Trade means, nmo .g o , , r .

! (c). çtspecimeù'' means Fcany animal : . . whether alive pr dead.'' CITES, At4. 1 at !( (b).

à. Long-tailed macaques (Macacafascicu' /tzrj-vl,xsometiine's alsp knôwn.as çmb-eating

macaques, are proteqtçd under Appendix 11 ' t)f clTEs. 50 c.y'.lt j'j 23.7 apd 23.9,'

hkps://èhecklisi.cites.örg'/#/eiserclouput lavoutialphabetical&levèl of listinz=o&show syn
- =. , . - . . . .

' 
. . ' -' .

onyms-iishow authofsl&show enzlish=l.&show uspapish=l&shoF french-l&scientific- na
, . . ' - ' . . . . - : 't - 

. . . .

me=Macaca+?ajcicularis&paae=l&per 
..
pace=20. The longctailrd m>cAque has been regulated

under CITES since 1977:
- ( .z

9. Before importingpwspecimen of any anirùal protected lmder Appepdi.x 11 (lf CITES
4 ' ,.q . . .' . .

i So the ùnited states, avalid CITPS expbrtpennit must be obtainçdxipmthe compepnt autio' rityn
, 

' .o' . . y '

. clf the èotmtrk of expc)rt cir re-export. A separate orikinal or a.trde copy of. a CITES Petqpis must
. . '

$ 7.be issued befôrç $he imjort ocçtu's and the dpcument inust xaccompapy kach shipmrpt and eu . Jp y s . ' .. . . '

. ' Y * . '

. ' ' ' ' -
'i 

.. 
'' 

: . 
'

. presentedto r.ws upônimportatiop. clvss-a, .lv.jj I-andc; so c.,.k.. ,jcs.2o(c),as,,2$(b).
. . . ' : ë - .

' 1.0.. CITES Pçpnits are individually ntlmbered. àhd. include inform ation qlich as the
' - . . . ' x '

. 
' 

'. % '

importer qf hrecord, èxpirter, speçjej being .tmded, a description of the specimens, tfle' CITES
. - . . , : ' .

Appçndix number, a sotlr. ce code, thé qùantity, gnd the date of i. ssugnce. The sotlrce code inpicates
. ( . ' . A - . . .
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the particulars of the speciments) listed on the CITES Permit: among others, the code çûW '' denotes

a specimen taken from the wild; CGR'' denotes a ranched specimen, taken as an egg orjuvenilè from

the wild and reared in a controlled environment; CGC'' denotes aaimals bred in captivity; a11 subject

to certain other term s and provisions on the Convention.

Under Title 50, PM  14, of the Code of Federal Regulations, all imports of wildlife,

including long-tailed macâques, must be declared to the FW S on a completed, signed, and certified

beclaratioh for Importation or Exportation of Fish and Wildlife tFon'n 3-177) and made available

for inspection. Form 3-177 requires importers or their agents to provide, nmong other information,

the sotzrce of the wildlife thçy arr importing, specifically whether the wildlife was captive-bred,

fnrm-raised,. or wild-caught. Importers or their agents must filrnish all applicable information

requested on the Form 3-177 and must certify that the information funlished is true apd complete

to the best of his/her knowledge and belief. 50 CFR 14.61.

12. OM ALISS KEO was the Director Oeneral of the M inistry of Agriculture, Forestry

and Fisheries (MAFF) of the Governmçnt of Cambodia and Chairman of the CITES Sdentitk

Authority for Terrestrial Forest and W ildlife Resotlrces, with oversight and responsibility for the

issuance of CITES export permits.

M ASPHAL KRY was the Deputy Diredor of the Department of W ildlife and

Biodiversity within the Forestry Administration of the M inistry of Agriculture, Forestry and

Fisheries (MAFF) of the Government of Cnmbodia.

JAM ES LAU was the Presidept, Chief Executive Officer, and owner of Vnnny
)
-

Bio-Research Center tlGvanny HK''), later re-named Vnnny Science Development LTD, which

was a Hong Kong-bas'ed com pany engaged 111
, among other bttsinessp the captttre and laundering

of wild-caught long-tailed macaques in Cnmbodia, for export to the United States and elsewhere.

Case 1:22-cr-20340-KMW   Document 9   Entered on FLSD Docket 11/04/2022   Page 4 of 27



. .. ' ( -

15. DICKSON LAU was the cGertçral Vamger pf Varmy HK and also served as the

Sçientitk M anager for Vpnpy HK.

SUNNY CHAN was 'the Manzger of Operatipnj Yor Vanny H.K. CHAN handled

the coordinptiop of shipmeqts of wild caught loflg-tailed macaques exported to the United State!è . ,

frop lcambodia.

#17. M PHAEE C.H EIJNG M A was k,thç Public Relations M anacrr and Export
. . - $ *-6

. 
' 

. 
v ' ..

Manaqer ?or twö facilities o.f Vnnnv HK in Cambodia operatedçby a subsidiary, Vanny Bio-
. 

' '
)' *-''- . ''' *' . ' . . .

7 . . g - - -

dia (''vBRc'') af Plwom Pen.ta an' d P'usat. CtIEIJNG coerdinqted the delivrtyRésèarch Cambo . , . 
. : .

. . . . ' J. . ,
of wlld-caught long-tailed macaqueswto the VBRC fàcilities in Cambodia fôr expbrt.to theaupited

.states.

18. SARAH YEUNG, who was phyyically located at the officeq of Vaptly HK, was
. ( '

the Finqnce M ânager for VBRC. YEUNG executed the financial .tràn
, 
saétion; thaf provided

. ' - ' -- - ,
.. . . , . .. - .

. .$ '
. %

. . fuqding to VBRC'S Phnom Penh and Pursat facilities for paymrnt to 'black mark/ collectèrs and

1 d acaques capttlred by thim apd delivkred jo' VéRC'SMAFF employèes for wild long-tai e . m  .

facilitiés for export to thé Urli. ted States.
. 

'

:L ' <tIIN'G IP CHIJNG was Genéral Manager ahd M anaging .Dipctor of VBRC.
. 

'

CHUNG facilisated payments'to Cambpdian governme'nt officiàls for their itwblvement'.in the
. 

' . . 
' . . .. .''' ''' -, . 

- . a .
- .. . ' .. ' ' ' '. .

capture of wild. long-tailed m4caques and payments mpde to black mqiket collectors öf wild-' 
. 
D- . 

. . .. r .

. .. 
'

y . ''

aughi long-taîlçd maçaques fot export to the Unitqd Statqj.ç

Unindicted. Co-conspirator 1 (UCC-I) was a company fornwd under the laws of
. . ' .' ' ' ' C .

. 
' > ' - ''

' 

th State (jf Floridk wjth ity listedl place of business in the Southem District of Florida, whichr . . y ,

epgyéed in the impplkation and sgle of non-hizfnan primates, itwludihg :long-tailed.m acaques.
. . ' 2 . .. - K
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Unindictçd Uo-conspirator 2 (UCC-2) was a company formed under th.e laws of

the State of Texas, with its listed place of business in Alice, Texas,
r 
which 'engaged in the

impoftation anct sale of noq-humap primates, ir/udipg long-tailed macaques.. . . . 
. y .

COUNT I
Cbnspiracy
(18 U.S.C. j 371)

e .

The General Allegasiqns sectitm  qf this Ind. ictment is realleged and ipcorporated

refemnce hewin, as though set förth inxits çùtirety. .
' 

( .*
Beginning on an tmknown date, but at leakt às early as on or abouttDec.ember 19,

201.7, and cöntinuing througi oq (lr about Janualy 7Q, 2022., in the Southern Distljct of Flödda '
. -  '- 

. 
'' ' . . . -

and elsewhem, the defe'ndants,

qMALIVS KEO,
MASPHAJU KAY,
JAm s LAU,
DlèkjoN LXIJ,
SUNW  CHXN,

RAPItAEE'CIIEUNG M AN
. 

'

SARAH YEUNG, an#Z
NG IP CHUNG,

did willfully', that isj' wifh the intent to further the objeçts of the' conspira' cy, yand knowingly .

in th known and 'combine. conspire. confederate. and acree with each other and with other persons o' .' . '' .A' ''' '' , x-''r ' ''*' ;.
. . ' . . .. .

unknoFn tp the Grand.lury, to cdmmis c'ertain offensbs against the United States, that is:
.
'

a. tq import, exporq transport, séll, receive, acquire, and ptzrchAsç any wildlife, '
that is, long-tailed macaques (Macaca fascicularls), kv' wing that said

. 
- ' - ' '

wildlife was talwn, possessed, transported, and sold in violMtipn of any law,
treas, az!d regulation. of the United States, in violation of Title 16, United

l 1 1 ) - ' ' :States Code,.sect on 337 (a).( , (

b. to make
. 
wld wbmit any fa' lse record, accotmt, and label for, and any fqlse

identttkation of, any wildlife, that is, long-tailed macaques (Macaca :
tl i injended to 'be, impprtèdk. exported, 'fascicularis), which. .has been, én y 

. .

transported, sold, ptlrchasèd, and reçeived from any tbreigp cotmtry; and
. 5
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transported in interstate or foreign commerce, in violation pf 16 U.S.C. j
3372(d)(1), (d)(2); and

to fraudulently and knowingly import and bring into the United States any
merchandise contrary to mly 1aw and regulation of the Ulzited States, in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section'545.

Purpose.of the Conspiracy

The purpose of the conspiracy was for the defendants and their co-conspirators,

known and tmknown to the Grand Jury, to sm uggle CITES Appendix 11 protected species, that is,

long-tailed macaques (Macacafascicularis), into the United States for tinancial gain.

M anner and M eans of the Conspiracv

The malmer and means by which the defendants sought to accomplish the objects and
J

purpose of the conspiracy included, among others, the following:

The defendants and their unindicted co-conspirators established facilities in

Cambod. ia puporting to breed long-tailed macaque! for sale on the world market.

5. The defendants and their llnindicted co-conspirators engàged with customers in the

United States and elsewhere and entered into contractual agreements tp sell and export purportedly

captive-bred macaques from Cnmbodia to the United States.

6. The defendants and theiT unindicted co-conspirators established a logistics system

'to allow buyers to inspect macaques prior to sale, including through the use of veterinarians, to

test the m onkeys for disqualifying conditions, quarantine shipments pri. or to export, and arrange

the necessary grotmd and aii transportation to facilitate the transadions.
J

7. The defendants and their unindictçd co-conspirators arranged to illegally puzchase

additional long-tailed macaques from black market suppliers in Cnmbodia and Th. ailand to make

up for the lack of supply of suitable monkeys at their ptuported breeding operattons. The black-

market suppliers,kincluding M AFF, identified in Vnnny HK and VBRC records tlirough the use of
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the letters A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, K, P, and X, would primarily deliver the illegally acquired

monkeys to the VBRC facility at Ptlrsat.

The defendants and their unindicted co-conspirators utilized the services of M AFF

and its epployees to further the purpose and objeèts of the conspiracy, and:
a. To secure CITES export pyrmits Fhich falsely identiûed wild-ckughtmacaques

RS CRPIWC bccd irl t11C VZRC facilities; .

C uu NN jxb
. To act as the source, under the designation of Black M arket Supply A, o

wild-caught macaques from  National Parks and protected areas which M AFF
' ; .

employees delivered to VBRC for later sale and ex
s
poft;

To provide Transport Permits which allowed macaques upspitable for the

export trade to be sent from the Pttrsat facility to the Phnom Penh facility where

they were euthanized and their identification tag: transferred. to wild-caught

macaqpes, to make it appear the black-market monkey! were. captive bred at

VBRC facilities;

d. To provide unofficial collection quotas, for wlzièh cash pqyljlents to M AFF
/

were authorized at Vnnny HK and made by' VBRC employees.

The defendants and thei.r llnindicted co-conspirators delivered Vd caused the9.
>

' delivery of. wild-çaught long-tailed macaques to various intemationatairports in th'e United States,

accompanied by Cnmbodian CITES Perm its and FW S Form  37177s fals:ly identifying the

monkeys as captive bred.

U on entry'into the United States, the longztailed lacaque shipvents would beP 
.

forwarded by truck from the port of entry to a quarantine facility designated by the,
(

importer/cpùsigpees, who were located in various states, including thqsouthern District of Florida.

Overt A cts

ln furtherance of th e conspiracy, and to effect the objects and ptppose thereof, there were
'. . u ' .

committed.and caused to be com mitted by at least one of the co-conspirators herein, within the
, 

- 
!ù -

Southern Diktrict of Florida and elsewhere, at least one of the following overt actsy.among others:
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On or about Decem ber 19, 2017, M PH AEL CH EUNG M AN m et with,

OM ALISS KEO and discMssed KEO's role in the collection of wild long-tailed macaques from

Cambodian N ational Parks.

On or about December 19, 2017, RAPHAEL CH/UNG MAN advised JAMES

LAU, HING IP CHIJNG, and NARAH YEUNG by email that OMALISS KEO would arrapge

for MAFF staff to collect someWhere round 2,000 lonkeys for VBRC, for which VBRC would

be chamed a ItRoyalty tax of US 31,.50 to Nation Treastlre . . . ,'' and that KEO GGwill instnzct the

g 'Dlrector of the National Park
.tawork out a suivey report qf the animal population.''

On or.about May 4, 2018, RAPHAEL CHEUNG M AN emàiled JAMES LAU,
' 

..y... . .

HING IP CHIJNG, and SARAH YEIJNG >dvising them that he had told OM ALJSS KEO that

they were short of animal's to export and needed 300 tp 500 heads to 511511 a July order and that

Itxo would tl'y !o' persuade his superior to allow colledtiqn ù' f the needed mpnkeys
. The email

- I 
. . I

srther reoorted tlaat anv conedion bv MAI'F persomwl would have' to be afur ufcoming July 29'. .A < *e' .x. ' . .... . . .-..

elections to avoid unnecessary attention from the public and) non-governmental organizations

(NGos), but that vBkc could collect monkeyp immediately and they would be off set against a
.J

, collection quota of 7,000 Jnorlkeys that would be issued on M ay 17. The email also requested that

the defendants a/ange to inakea payment of $40,000 to M AFF.

On or about Jtlpe 14, 2018, RAPHAEL CHEUNG M AN reported in an email
v 

' 
.

addressed to JAM ES LAU. HING IP CHUNG. SAM H YEUNG. and SUNNY CHAN thatk 1 '' '. '' '' r

CHEUNG M AN received information from OM ALISS KEO th>t the Ministet hàd approved and

issued the collection qpota and final payment should be made to V AFF.
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1
. 

' 

j .
Later on' June 14

, 2018, in an em aixl 'addressed jo JAM EM I:AU' , HING IP
. . 

. 1 .
cucxc, sku tlvscxG, and stxxv cuwx,ltAéllAst, f?u&rcxc MAxsqueste4 rrom

. 
'' )

YEUNG a tçfin'n date for remitt% ce'' as he needéd to respond to OM ALISS KEO and advised
. . 

' 
!

the'recijiçnts. thqt tûbesides eleçtion cnmpaigns start mosj officialj neqd the. ftuïd.''.

6. 0n or about Jupe 25; 2018, RAPHAFL CHEIJNG M .* . alonk with IIING IP
' ' . ' - ' -- * Yv ' R' '

y 
'

NGi SAIG  lJ YEUNG, 'apd stmW  cHAN,. rrceived a remitpnce dpçttmeùt from anCIIIJ , .. 
. . ) . ' 'y ' . . .

. 
' 

.

employee at Valmy HK refleding thaf $83,259.00 origipating from Vanny Chain Technology

Hong Kong) Limited. pqssqd througù the Bank of Apertca, N.A. in xes vork,.NY and was(
- 

. - - t
rçceived by VBRC'S Cambodiahbank. Itemiz4d onthe reinitlynce was $40,900.90 for GTP Apimal

collectiön 20j0 fleadsr''' 
. . . ' '

' . . ' '' 
. .

. Où or abput Juqe 26, 20,18, an employee of 'Vpnny.HK sent 0. em ail to R APH AEL
c 

' -1 ' '
7

HEI/NG. MAN HIN: IP ctltlxG, scxxv'cllu , and sAuAu yEtTxG with ak auwhedC ,
. '%. . -

. . . y . .
VBRC internal accounting doztlmeny GTP Purchgse Application Folw  PF N 'uinber C1/E/18-06-

' .. .
. . '

.. - '' '' '' ' .

18,' which refkcied a ''Donation f
. or cpp Party. (Request fmm Mr. oialissl'' ip 4he o otmt of

$10* 000.00.7 The document wAs signed by CHUNG and CHEIJNG. M 'AN :nd contained a
:

notation that read, lGspoke to M r. Lau.''

8. : Later on June 2j, 2018, RAPHAELCHEJJ.NG MAN by Jlhailprpviàed a copy of
k ' 

. .

MAFF Colltctioa Pennit No. /298. for the collection of 2,000 monkeys by 'VBRC to JAMES
. 

'' - ' ' ''' ''' ' .

LAV. HING IP CHUNG, jAVAH YEUNC, and SJJNNY CHAX.
. . .'

f 21 2018 VBRC shipped 440 satnples of blèld sérulh drawnon or about Ju y , ,
' .. 

'

from  longrtai.led m acaques to an analytical laboratory in Sah Ansbnio. Texas tq. be tested;' ' --- --' ' ! . -' . - -' - -'

( 
'' .

ltipping L docllments àcçomèaqying tie snmples identified' them as rèlatçd to shipménts .
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USA1811, apd .the accompynying CITES Permit K141324 identified the source of the
. 

' '

monkeys as captîve bred.

. J

10. On or about July 25, 2018, UCC-I, located in the Southèl'n District of Florida,

imported a) shipment idenjified as.USA1810 corkainjng 150 long-tailedmacaqqes from VBRC

at Jolm F. Kemwdy Airport (JVK), NeF York.

On or abopt July 25, 2018, an FW S. Form 3-177 and CITES Penhit 1G 1294 wçre

presepted to FW S at JFK which reflected that shipment USA1810 was composed entireiy of

captive bred m acaques.

On or about Auqust 13. 2018. M PHAEL CTTEVNG M AN reported to JAM ES

Ac olcxsoxlaAtl,tllxù IP CII'LTNG,SARAHVEtTNG, and scxxv cnAxthathehadL ,

et with VAFF officiâls including MASPHAI, KRY, lcnown to CHEIJNG MAN as ûIMARKm ,

SOPHAT,,'' dlzring which they discusbed the price for the official quota of $150 for each o/the

2,000 monkeys, and aprice of $220 each for the unofficial quota of 3,000, which M AFF employees

Fould colleqt and tranjport to the VBRC facility at Ptlrsat. CHEIJNG M AN
. further yeported that.1

' 

M AFF preferred to begin collecting as soon as possible .dlzring. the rainy season, expected to

complete a11 necessary cqllection before the end of the yeat', and M AFF would provide VBRC 4

to 6 Vurs of notice prior to the d
.eliveries, with the likely arrival time at night, alzd that OM ALISS

KEO verified these points several days later. M AFF had also asstlred CHEUNG M AN that

çGunofficial anirpals'' would not appear on VBRC'S montllly'ureport
, and MAFF wopld conceal the

tficial.monkeys from the lopal Phnom Penh and Pursat officials.0 0

. j . . .
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On or about August 24, 2018, UCC-I, lodated in the Southern District of

Florida, im ported a shipm enf identified as USA 181 1 containing 3
. 60 long-tailed m acaques

from  VBRC at JFK A irport, N ew Y ork.

14. On or about August 24, 2018, an FW S Form 3-177 and CITES Permit 1G 1320
. 

'

were presented to FW S at JFK which reflected that shipment USA1811 was composed entirely of

captive bred macaques.

On or about November 2, 2018, RAPHAEL CHEUNG M AN sent an çmail to

DICKSON LAU, HING 'IP CHIJNG, SARAH YEUNG,and SUNNY CHAN in which he

reported having met with the M AFF M ASPH AI, KRY, known to

CHEUNG M AN as CGMAR.K SOPHAL,'' and advapced US$10,000 to him to carzy on the

collection, that they ,had. mutually agreed that M AFF would collect and deliver 300 animals

collection tenm leader,

ighing between 2 to 4 kgs within the month to VBRC, and that the MAFF
. empioyee was awareWe

that VBRC wouldn't accept and would reject any infprior animal. CHEUNG M .AN asked his

supkriors for the funds necessary to settle before the end of the month, representing the amotmts

owed to M AFF for the 300 monk
. eys and for Royaity taxes due on thç official quota animals.

On 'ol about M ày' 11, 2019, a shipment of 360 long-tailed macaques, contai'rling

approximately 74 wild caught monkeys, and identified as USA1973, was imported into the United

States at JFK, and drlivered to UCC-2 in Alice, Texas.

On M ay 11', 2019, O FW S Form 3-177 and CITES Permit 1G 1391 were prrsented

to FW S at JFK in New York, which reflected that shipment USA1973 was composed entirely of

captive bred m acaques.
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18. On or about June 27,. 2019, a jhipment of 360 long-tailed macatues, containing
4 . . .

approxim ately 194 wild caught m onkeys and identified as US. A 1974, was im pbrted into the United

States at JFK, and delivered to UCC-2 in Alice, Texas.

19. On June 27, 2019, an FW S Form 3-177 and CITES Permit KH 1407 w ere presented

to FW S at JFK in New York, Which reflectçd that shipment USA .1974 was composed.entirely of
. . . ' 

. 
'

)
captive bred m acaques.

20. On or about August 29, 2019, M ASPHAI, KRY, accoppanied by two otherM M F
. '

, . j

( employeeg, delivered 17 wild long-tailed zh. acàques to the VBR/ facility at.ptlrsat'
. . 

' 
: - 

.t

On or about September 1, 2019, M ASPHAT, KRY, accompAnied by two other

M AFF employees, .dèlivered 24 wild long-tailed mâcaques to VBRC'S facility iù Pttrsat, dlzripg

hich KRY suggested that the) land immediately behind the VBkC .facility shottld be purchasedW

to makç a road that wogld make it tGmore safe for tie smuggling.''

.. !

22. On or about September 3, 2019, Black Market Supplier D waj paid approxiinately
l

$10,380 for the delivery of approximately 60 wild caught long-tailed macaqués .to the VBRC

facili'ty at Pursat.

23. Qn or about October 8, 2019, HING IP CHIJNG infonned SARAH YEUNG by
. . . . 

'

email that VBRC didA't havç enough cash on hand aftèr haking made paymenss to M AFF .and
. ' .

requçsted $30,000.00 from YKUNG for the collection fund to pay for an additidnal 100 animals
. ' ' ' .'

Fhich were on their way.

24. On or about Oçtober 20; 2019, M ASPH AI. KRY , accpmpanied by two other

. 
'

M AFF employees, delivered 20 wild long-jailçd pacaques'to the VBRC facility in Pursat.
' ) . k
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25. On or about December 13, 2019, Black M arket Supplier A was paid approximately

$8,360 focthe delivety of approxipately 38 wild caught long-tailed macyques to.the VBRC facility

at Ptlrsat.

26. On or about January 1.6, , 2020, a shipment of 288 longrtailed macaques, containing
' . ; u

imately 237 wild caught monkeys and identified as USA2071 was impoled into the UnitedaPPCOX ,

States at JFK., and deliveyed to UCC-2 in Alice, Texas.

27. On or about January 16, 2020, an FW S Form 3-177 and CITES Perrpit K1-11523

were presented to FW S at JFK in New York, which reflected that shipment USA2071 was
. . ' vw

composed entkely of captive bred macaques.

28. On or about January 30, 2020, Biack M qrket Supplier C wAs paid approximately

for the delivery of approximately 68 wild caught long-tailed macaqugs to the VBRC$14,645

facility at Pursat.

On or about February 21, 2020 a shipment of 288 long-tâiled macaques,7 
. . 

.

jcontaining ajproximately 138 Fild caught monkeys and identified as U A1916, Was imported intù

the Unitedvstates at Npwark, New Jersey,.and delivered to U CC-I in M inm i, Florida.

30. On or about Februal'y 21, 2020, én FW S Form 3-177 and CITES Permit K111524
. 

' -

were presented to FW S at Liberty Intem ational Aiqmrtuin N ewark, New Jersey which reflected
... 
. 1

hat shipment USA1916'Vas composeb entirely of captive bred macaques.t

From on or about M arch 11, 2020, tö on or about Octôber 20, 2020, VBRC paid
: .

approximately $2,515,954 for approximately 14,3213 wild caught lohg-tailed mdcaques received

frqm 7 black market suppliers.
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32. On or about Jtm e 21, 2020, M ASPH. AL KRY delivered 35 wild lopg-tailed '

macaque: to the VBRC facility in Ptlrlat and provideè contact information using jhe nnme

(çj; jZj;jK!4 77

33. On or about June 29, 2020, Black M arket Supplier A was paid approxipately

$4,840 for the delivery of approximately 22 wild caught long-tailed macaques to the VBRC facility

àt Ptlrsat.

34. On November 11, 20204 a shipment of 396 long-tailed macatues, containing

approxim ately 323 wild caughtm onkeys and identified as USA2011, was imported into the United
. 
' 

. k

. 
'=

. 
. . . , 

..

Stales at bulles International Airport, Virginia, and delivçred to UCC-I in Minmi, Florida.

On or about January 26, 2022, in an exchange of socialmedia app com.p tmications,
. ' 

. . . .

. 
'

, i ;. .

RAPHAEL'.CHEUNG discussed the beliver.y by Black M arket Supplier D of wild càught lopg-
- : .

tailed m acaques to VBRC and received rettu'n confirm ation that 115 m acaques had in fact been
. 

' ' ..

yeceived and discussed the expected delivery by Black M arket Supplier K of 170 wild caught long-

tailed macaques. '

A1l in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.
. . 

' '

COUNTS 2 - 8
Smugglinj

(18 U.S.C. j 545)
. . ' 

jThe General Altlgations section of this Indictment is reqlleged and incorporated
, by

' reference herein,'p.s though set forth in its entirety. .

' : .
On or .about theidates identified below with respect to each Cotmtk in Miami-Dade

1) S thern Dijtrict of Florida, and elsewhere, the' defendants,Cotmty, in t e ou

15
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oMAI,Is# ItE ,0
MWSPHAL KRY,
JAM ES LA ,lJ

m cx sox LAIJ,
stTxxv CHAN,

RAIàHAIqL clu vxc m x,
s A RA H vE ,tJy G a n d
HING IP cptm G,

did fraudulçntly and knowingly impol't and bdng into the United States any merchandise, that is,

i tai'led macaques (Macacafascicularis), contrary to any law qnd regulation of thewild çaughj ong-

United S.tates, through the presentation of false and fraudulent CITES Permits ànd FW S Form 3-.
. 
''''' . '

177s:

COUNT DATE SHDMENT MACAQUES QUAYTITY/ AmPORT OF ' CONSIGNEE
NUMBER DECLARED VAEUE EYTRY , LOCATION

2 07/25/18 USA1810 150 / $306,000 JFK M iami, FL
g. 

'

3 08/24/18 USAI8) 1 360 / $66:1,680 JFK è Miami, FL
d 

.

4 05/30/19 USA1907 360 / $t14 600 JFK ' ' Miami, FL7 .

. 
'

5 02/21/20 USA1916 288 / $697 à00 Newark Liberty Miami FL
. > '

. - ' 
- 

( ' '
6 ' 11/11/20 USAZOJ 1 396 / $1,162,81) Dulles lnt'l. : Miami, FL

. 
' 

.

7 05/27/21 US.A2104 540 / $1,755,000 Dulles Int'l. M iami, FL

8 12/17/21 USM 109 549 / $4,050,000 O'Hare ' Miami, FL

In violation of Ti.tle 18, United States Code, Sections.545 and 2.

FORFEITURE

1. The allegations of tllis Superseding lndictment arè hereby reallejed and by tllis

reference t'ully incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging forfeitlzres to the United States of
N 

'

Am erica of bertain property in which the defendants, OM AI,ISS K EO , M ASPH AL KRY,

16
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JAMES LAP, DICKSON LAU,SUNNY PHAN, RAPHAEL CHEUNG MAN,jARAH

YEUNG , and HING IP CH UN G, have an interest.

2. Upon convictioqof a conspiracy tofcomm it, or'aviolation of, Title 16, United States

Code, Section 3372, as alleged in this Supèrseding lndictment, the defendants shall foffeit to the

Urlised States any and al1 wildlife imported, exported, transported., sold, recçived, acquired, or

purchased qontrary to Title 16, United Stqtes Code, Section 3372, pursuant to Title 16, Uùited

State: Code, Section 3374.

. 
''

. Upon convictiop of a violation of Title 18, Ullited States Code, Sedion 545, as

alleged in this Supersedinj Indidment, the defendants shall forfeitto the Unitqd Stases of America

qny gnd a11 property, real or.personal, which constitutes or is derived from  procqeds traceable to
:

the offense or'offenses, pmsuant to Title.l8, United States Uode, Section 982(q)(2)(B).

A1l pursu>nf to Title 16, United States Code, Sçction )374(d), Titt'e 18, Ur/ed Stgtes Cqde,
' , (

Section 982(a)(2)(B), and the procedures set forth in Title 21, United States Code, Section 851, as
. 

'

inçorporated by 28, United Stateà Code, Section 2461.

W C S1A T

' . .. 
'

. z/ (%

Jl) ARTONI M .EZ-. ' k
UNITZD STATES AT RNEY

;. . '

. 
' 

yitzG raldT omay Wlatts-
Assiqtant Uriited Statej Attohney
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UNITED STATES DJSTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA
J

OMALISS KEO, ET AL.

/
' Defendants. '

Coprt Division (select one)
El Miami ' E1 Key W est L. FTP ,
L' F T L L' . W  P B '

l do hereby .certify that:
1. I hqv'' e caryfully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the number of probable

' witnessesipd the legal complexities of the Indictriïent/lùfonnation attached hèrelo.

CASE NO.: 22-2(340-CR-W1LL1AMS(s)

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL AW ORNEY*

Superseding Case lnform ation:

New Defendantts) (Yes or No) Yes
Numier of Nbw Defendants 1
Total number of New Counts O

. r .

1 am awarç that the information supplied on this statement will be relied uplm hy !he Judgçs of this Court in setting
their calendars and scheduling criminal trials tmder the mandate of the Speedy Trial Acty Title 28 U.S.C. j3 161.

. 
- t

'

Interpretef: @ es or No) Ye' s
List langugge and/or diale' ct: M azndarin Chinese' Kmer

This case will take 15 days for the parties to try.

Please check apprppriate.category and type of offense listed below:
(Check onlyone) . (Check only one)
1 E1 07 to. 5 days L, petty
11 IQ ' 6 to 10 days E1 M intjr
III Z 11 to 29 days L Misdemeanor
Iv E1 zl to 60 days z. y'elony
V EI 61 days and over

.

Has this kase been previously' filed in this District Coul't? (Yes or No) yes
lf yes, Jtkdge w illiams Case.No. 22-20340-cR-W II-IuIAMS
Has a cofnplaint been fled in this matter? (Yes or No) No
If yej, M âgistrate Case Noz '
xDoes thij case relate to a previously filed matter in thij District Court? (Yes or No) Yes
If yes, Judge ' Case N o.please see attached fcjrm '

9. Defqndaùtts). in fedçral custody as of
10. Defendarjtts) in state custödy as of
1 1. Rule 20 iom the District.of
$2. Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) No :
l3. Does thi's èase originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U .S. Attorney's Office

pr'ior to August 8, 2014 (Mag. Judge Shaniek Maynard? (Yes or No) .N0
Does this' case èriginate from ; matter'pending in the Céntral Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office
ior to October 3, 2'019 (Mag. Judge Jamd' Strauss? (Yes or No) No CPr

. . - ' .
. ' .

) r

% ;

B : - ' -.- . ', . 'y
Th mas W atts-Fit Gerald
Assistant United States Attorney
FLA BarNo. ' 0273538 '
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'J .

IJNITED STATEjIG TRICT COURT
SOUTHERN PIjTRICT QF FLORIDA
case xo. 22-2ts40-cR,w I

. 
tk' ïwvsto .

. : '

UNITEP STATES OF AMEm PA
. ' . . 

' 
.

V.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL
OMALISS KEO. ET AL. / ATTQRNEY CONVNVED

. . .% . - I . 
' 

. 
' .

PREVIOUSLY FILED M ATTERS IN DISTRICT COIJRT

1 : 1 8zmj -2,1 8.4-JJO-
L 1. Qu q '

, 1 : 18umj-2580-V. caliley.. 
. :. vL . :

. 
. 

. j .. j g smj .3 8 0 VJJO

1:20-mj-4133tLp1lij
.; '

. . . 'ê

1:21rmj-2251iAOR
'
. 

. t
.$

1 :21-mj-2252-AOR
!T :

,
'

1'2'1-mj-22 5)1AOR* k
> 

. . ;1:21-mJc2294rAOR
/ .

-- /

' 1 :2 1-mj-3 1 13iAOR
( '

' 1 :22-mj-2071(L(mis

1. :22-114-2 1 lsrReid

1 :19-mj-2 1. 84-VcAlilçy
, 

. ' 
.

1:19-mj-21à5uMcAli1ey
- .è 'h

1 : 19-'-111.J*'2292 O-JJO

t'20-mj-2267-McA1i1ey
' 

. 
' k,

. 1:20-mJc2592-Re1d
. è -.-

1:20amj-2 674cA0R

1:20umj=2730rEGT
E

'

1 :20-pj.4080-EG T
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!'

l
l

UNITED STATES DISTW CT COURT
SOUTHERY DISTWCT OF'FLORIDA

('
P/NALTY SHEET
l
lDefendant's Name: Omaliss K

eo r' 

j
1Case No: 22-20340-CR

-
-W 1LLlAM S(s)

Countts) #: 1 j
1

1Conspiracy' 

j
' Title 18.. United States Code. Secfion 371 . -

'

. ' .. ' ' 
.. . . t . '' .'- - * M :x/Teèm-ofw.ll prisonl ent,: # Yeap Imprisohment .. .. - . .' ',-' .=.,.-,..=.'

* Mandatory M in. Term of Imprisonnkent (if applica' bIe): N/A
* Mpx. Superviàed Release: 3 Years ( '
* M ax. Find: Greater of $250,000 or V, ice the pecuniary gain/loss

t

'

Cotmtts) #: 2-8 1.

Smugglinc
' j

r
.'ritle 18e United States Codee Section 545 '
w lM ax. Terl of Imprisonment: 20 Years Im prisonm ent

. '''''' 1* M andatéry M in
. Term of Imprisonment (if appliçable): N/A

* Max. Supervised Releaje: 3 Years )
* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,000 or tWice the pecuniary gain/loss

l
i
t
l
1

1

;
I

1
I

t
t
i

l

(
l
l .*Refers oaly to possible term of incarceration,.supervised release and .fines? (11 dpes not inelude

rejtitution, specia assessments, p'arole terms, or forfeitures thqt may be applicable.
!
1
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:: J.-

1

IJNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT' 
.u g ..... è

SOUTHERN DISTW CT OF FLORIbA
, t

PENALTY SHEET

' ! N . hal 'D èfehd@ùt s am e: as

Case Nb: 22-20340rCR- LLIAM S s
.- . . . 

mL .C
otmttsl #: 1

Conspirac' . . . .

Title '18 Uhited States C o e' .sectioù 371r . . . . . 
. 
. 

.. - 
rr

'

* '4 k':' '.T'érI: t'k'?.yflkki'p' i ijà ' v'pt.tlqs:Yk' Ar'$$ lmptiktihxiikpl) . ;', ï, )---'-' ..-.- .. . zL.L.uu-' -''u,,,t'.-.c- ..7'u,-c.-,...2 '-s ...-''.- ,u,t'-...p-'s' '..'.,'-.- ....,-,..,:-e..
l* M andatp ry M in

. Ter of Imprisonmeni. (if applicable): N/A
'* M ax. Sdpervisvd R ele se: 3 Y

. 
ears 1

* Max. Fink: Greater.'of 250,0. 00 nr t'Wice fhe pecuniaa Main/loss' 
. . J . -''. . 

- --- 
. .

Countts) #: 2-8

. Smuccllnu . . . .

Tltle 18s United States Cbde. Section 545 : .
* Vax Terp tff .Im#' ispùment; 20 Yea'rs Imptisùnmént* . . .

. : ;

' 

. 

j* M andàtdry Vin. Tèi'm of Imp/popmènt (it applicable): N/A

* M' x. 'Sùperviyed 'RèVâse: 3 Yéarsf t> .* Mqx. Fipe: Greater of $250,000 or iwice the peèùni>ry gain/lnss .

t
k

'

t
. ' j. v .

.. J t' Z..L. . . 
' 

L,u.=..LL....-v.j=- ==z.m.....w= r- è'w.-#y?.,xA Q' <)
1

1 .

.
. g ' . - .*Refers only. to possible term hf incarceration? jupervised rdvàse and fines. It does not include

. .t ' 'restitution, special assessmentfirp>roletèi-ihsi or fbéfeitures ibà.t 1ay be.applicable.
' 

c '. ''t
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)

l
UNITED SG TES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERM, DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

1
PANALTY SHEET
1D

efendant's Name: James Lau !
1.C

ase No: 22-20340-CR-W1LLIAM S@)

Countts) #: 1 1
IConspiracy q

.à s rtrfitle 18. U ilitpd States Ccidee gektion 371 - . . .

M ax. Term ôf Ilprlkonment: 5 Yeàrk Ilprisànxhent
* M andatory Min. Term of Imprisonment (if applicable): N/A
* M ax. Supènrised Release: 3 Y ears
* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecuniary gain/loss

Countts) #': 2-8

Sm uczlinc

Title 18s United States Codes Section 545
* M ax. Term  of Im prisohm ent: 20 Years Im prisonm ent
* M and>tory Min. Term of Imprisonment (if applicahle): N/A
* Max. Su/ervised Release: 3 Years
* M ax. Finè: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecuhiary gain/loss

.. S

'kRefers only to possibl'e .term of incarceration, supervised release and fines. It does not include
restitution, special assessménts, paröle terms, or forfeitures that may be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DISTW CT COURT
SOUTHERN PISTRICT OF FEORIDA

PENALTY SHVET

Defendant's Nam e: Dickson Lau

Case No: 22-20340-CR-W lLLIAM S(s) .

Cotmtts) #: 1

Conspiràcy

8 Uhited States Ctjèee.section 371 .. . . :. Title 1 . y
x'u'cc.vil.,=llkm .. k- ,.:'.' ' jjm' yjjjjyj' ,j,j,' (ut: y yyuj.' s jjjjpgujjyj-yéjuj' ' ' -- . ,=, .u - . '=- .. - -- ,-o,g..nz. .w- ....5 = . : . - . . ' . - ï'. . .M àk. er o p

* M andatory Min. Term of lmprisonment (if applicable): N/A
* M ax. Stlpervised Release: 3 Years ,

* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,000 or tWice the pecuniary gain/loss

Countts)' .#.2-8

Smuggling

Title 18. United States Code. Section 545
* M ax. Térm of Imprisonment: 20 Years Imprisonmsht
* Mandatory M in. Terl pf Imprisonmept (if applicàble): N/A

' * M ax. Supervised Releasei 3 Years
'*

. Max. i'inei Greater of $250,000 or twice the p'ecuniary gain/lbss

RR efers ohly to possible term  of incarceration, supervised release and fines. It does not include
restitution, special assessments, parole termsr. or forfeitures that may be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: Sllnny Chan

Case No: 22-20340-CR-W 1LLlAM S(s)

Colmtts) #: 1

Conspiracv

Yitle 18 U' hited States Codes Section 371 . . .
. 

' 
* ( . .o . . ' . . . ' k.

... . # M gr rrerm oflmprisonment: 5 Years Imprisonment . . ', - .- .;-
* Mandatory Min. Term of Imprisonment (1 aphlicable): N/A
* M ax. Supenrised Release: 3 Years
* M axk Fine: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecuniary gain/loss

Cotmtts) #.. 2-8

smugglipg

Title 18. Uhited States Code. Section 545
w v:M ax. Term of Impkisoùl ent: 20 ears Im prisonm ent '

* M andatory M in. Term of Imprisonment (if applicable): N/A
* M ax..supervised R elegse: 3 Years
* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,'000 or twice the pecuniary gain/loss

. . '

*Refers only to possible term of incar' ceration, supervised release and fines. It does not include
restitution, speeial assessm enfs, parole term sr. or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DJSTRJCT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICY OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

f ï.Defendant s Nam e: Raphael Cheurm M an

Case No: 22-20340-CR-W 1LLIAM S(s)

Countts) #: 1

' Title l8vunited. States Code. Section 371 .
. 

. J .. .. . u : . . . . .
.': è ?r M ax. Teçxh of Imprisphl ent: 5 Years Imprisonment . : . '

- . y . . . ' - - v. - . ' . . t ' y ' . R' k ' . . ' - .' k andàtt,ry Min. TèiG -of Imprisèhiwihttif alylièkblil: N/A
* M ax. Supervised Release: 3 Years ,

* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecuniary gain/loss '
, . . 

' 
. J

' 

.

Cotmtts) #: 2-8

Sm uczlina ,

Title 18s United Staïes Code. Section 545
* M ax. rterm of Imprisônment: 20 Years Imprisonment
* M andatoi'y Min. Term of Imprisonment (if applic'able): N/A
* M ax. SupervisédA elease: 3 Years
* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecuniary gain/loss

y- '

WRefèrs only to possible term of incarceration, superviéed release and fines. It does not include
restitution, àpecip)l ajsessments! parole terms, or forfeitures tàat may be applicable.
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IJNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PEYALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: Sarah Yeurm

Case No: 22-20340-CR-W1LLIAMS(s)

Colmtts) #: 1

- r . ' Title 18. Upited Statès Cbde. Se- c-t-ion 371 - 
.

. . y - . . . .
.=...+ -- -. .-  M. M5,..Ti- .r.!#. .

p-f
.glvm pri.-l-ovzpwntq 5 Yqars .lampri.-jpppçnt . -., ,.-- .-. -.- -s..-'.. . .. .- -

* V andatory Min. Term of lmprisonment (if applicaàle): N/A
* M ax. Supervised Release: 3 Y ears
* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecuniary gain/loss

. 
'

countts) ): 2-8

Srilucclina

Title 18. United States Code, Section 545
* M ax. Term of Im prisonm ept: 20 Years Im p/isonm ent
* M andatory M in. Term of Imprisonment (if applicable): N/A
* M ax. Supervised Release: 3 Years
* M ax. Fine: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecuniary gain/loss

* ' ' ii It does not includeRefers only to possible term of incarceration, supervised release and nes.
restitution, special assessments, parole terms, pr'forteitnres tlmt may be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DISTW CT COURT.
SOUTHERN DISTRICT (?F FLORIDA

PEN ALTY SHEET
;

Pefendant's Name: Hilm Ip Chung

Case No: 22-20340-CR-W1LLlAM S(s)
) ' .

Cotmtts) #: 1

Conspiracv

Title 1.8. United States. Codes Sedion 371
. M >x. 'Iitrin of Imprijqùmeqt: 5 Ykgks.lmprisonmçnt ; . 

. 
. . .-' - -.-.) ........ ..x.y.w.'k- - .....r-'..r. - -- ''' - ' ' - - '' %' -'J - ' - -- 'R' - ...---- - ''''''

* Mandato+ Min. Tèrm of Imprisonment (if apjlicable): N/A
* M ax. Supea ised Release: 3 Years
* M ax. Finç: Greater of $250,000 or twice the pecvniary gain/lpss

Cqtmttsl #: 2-8

Sm uccling

Title l8runited States Code. Section 545 .

* M ax. Term  of Im prisonm ent: 20 Years Imprisonm ent
* M andatpry Min. Term of Imprisonment (1 applicable): N/A
* M ax. SupeN ised Releasé: 3 Yeàrs
* M ax. Finç: Greater of $250,000 or twice the'pecuniary gain/loss

WRefers only to possible term of .incarceration, supèrvisrd release and fines. it'dbes not include
restitution, special assessments, parole terms, or forfeitu/es that may be applicable.
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